ANNUAL REPORT

بايانا

G.J. Gardner. HOME

Cowl

i.

um

11

2023

THE L

7



Life Members:

Chair: Barry Dent

Board Members: Fionna Chapman; Jane Lattimore; Will Lovell; Letitia Stenberg; Alan Wenmoth; Greg Williamson. Terry Brunel; Tina Cook; Peter Crowhen; Darrel Flynn-Thompson; Sandra French; Jamie Graham; Faith Harrison; Cathy Hyland; Murray Kennedy; Piet Van Hasselt; Bill Whelan; Paula Wilkinson; Raewyn Willocks. - General Manager

Cowles Stadium

SE

Staff: Clive Beaumont James Lissaman Nicky Jagger Nicole Gleason Ben Constable **Richard Kenny**

– Community Basketball Manager – Finance Manager

- Community Events Officer
 Head of Pathways and Community Development
 Referee Appointments and Development Officer



ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Canterbury Basketball Association Inc. 220 Pages Road, PO Box 27112, Shirley, Christchurch 8640 www.canterbury.basketball

CONTENTS

BOARD CHAIR'S REPORT	4
GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT	6
CLUB BASKETBALL REPORT	8
WINTER CLUB BASKETBALL FINALS REPORT	8
MAJOR AWARDS WINNERS	15
MIDWEEK BASKETBALL	17
HIGH SCHOOL COMPETITIONS	18
DEVELOPMENT REPORT	25
REPRESENTATIVE PROGRAM REPORT	26
REFEREE REPORT	28
ANNUAL FINANCE REPORT	29
OUR SPONSORS	45
FUNDING PARTNERS	46

Canterbury Basketball Association Incorporated 51st Annual Report and Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st December, 2023. Presented at the Annual General Meeting, 10th April 2024.

2023 BOARD CHAIR'S REPORT

Barry Dent



I present my Report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

2023 was a 'steady as she goes' year, with some specific extra work related to referee development and appointments. alongside improved communication with members of the Association. I am certain 'change' will continue to impact us and we will need to be nimble enough to take advantage of all the opportunities that present themselves.

OUR PEOPLE:

Murray Kennedy's two terms on the Board were due to come to an end at the 2023 AGM. but due to other commitments Murray resigned from the Board on 13 December 2022 and this vacancy was left vacant until the 2023 AGM. Two applications for Appointment to the Board were received. The Selection Panel met and appointed **Letitia Stenberg** to the Board with effect from the 2023 AGM.

Greg Williamson resigned from the Board on 18 July 2023 as a consequence of him moving overseas to pursue business interests. The Board resolved to leave this elected vacancy vacant until the 2024 AGM.

Clive Beaumont has now been with us as General Manager for four years. Clive has made his mark at a BBNZ level and his leadership of the operational side of Canterbury Basketball has been outstanding. The Board approved an additional position to be known as the 'Diversity and Inclusion Development Officer'.

STRATEGIC PLAN:

Our Strategic Plan for the period for 2023-2027 was approved early in 2023. The Plan is designed to

challenge and improve participation, ensure ongoing development, improve our basketball structure and advance the business of basketball. The Plan was made available to all Clubs and is on our website.

It is heartening to note progress on a number of the matters set out in the plan during the season just past. The GM will report on this progress.

KEY PARTNERSHIPS AND COLLABORATION:

In order to achieve those outcomes set out in the Strategic Plan we need to work alongside a number of other organisations. Those we work alongside include Basketball New Zealand (BBNZ), our Clubs, North Canterbury Basketball, Mid Canterbury Basketball, Sport Canterbury, Canterbury Regional Basketball Foundation, and School Sport Canterbury.

OUR FINANCES:

A review of the Annual Finance Statement shows our financial position remains very sound. Our operational surplus for the 2023 year, of over \$62,000, is an improvement on the budgeted deficit of \$57,444. The operating surplus recorded includes unrealised investment income of \$22,543 on the Consilium Portfolio investment. The Association's Equity has increased slightly to just over \$500,000.

An area of satisfaction to the Board is the level of reserves held by the CBA. At year's end our reserves are at almost 67% of one year's income.





OTHER MATTERS:

This year the Representative programme was an absolute credit to all involved with the results at national tournaments outstanding. Congratulations to you all!

The 'BBNZ Delivery System Change' progressed pretty slowly, even after great support at the BBNZ AGM in May. The CBA Board supported the proposal at the AGM. A Change Manager has now been appointed so it is hoped that significant progress can be made in 2024.

An initial Regional Basketball Forum was held in July with most of those involved in basketball in Canterbury attending. It is hoped this will be a forerunner of future co-operation once the enhanced BBNZ Delivery System is finalised.

The 2023 AGM approved amendments to the Constitution related to Membership, Voting, Member Clubs and the removal of two management matters.

Amending Disciplinary Regulations are being developed for introduction.

THE FUTURE:

Given the Strategic Plan, the time continues to be right to put more back into the sport to make the experience for the participant more enjoyable as, after all, that is the fundamental reason for participation in our sport. The adoption of the new BBNZ Delivery System and the opening of the Parakiore Recreation and Sports Centre in 2025 will ensure continued growth in the sport we all love – basketball. We are almost ready for these exciting changes. Bring them on!

THANKS!

There are many people who give their time voluntarily to enhance the sport of basketball in Canterbury. The Board thank you for the time you give to our sport. Thanks!

Thank you to the team at the office, James, Nicky, Ben, Nicole (until February), Richard, Ty (from February), Samantha (from February), and Clive for your efforts for the betterment of basketball. Your ongoing commitment is very much appreciated!

Thank you also to our supporters, funding partners and sponsors who assisted us during the year. Without you we would not be able to provide the community with the opportunities they currently have. A list of our sponsors, partners and supporters is set out elsewhere in this Report.

To anyone else who assists us in any way thanks to you all as well.

Given this is my last report as Chair, I take this opportunity to thank all those who have supported me over the last six years. Your support has been very much appreciated. I leave with a view that we have achieved much, but more importantly, we are in a great position to confidently step up into the future.

For and on behalf of the Board

Barry Dent, CHAIR

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

Clive Beaumont



"the level of commitment by everyone in our Clubs and Schools who have a passion for our Sport is truly humbling."

As I come to report to the AGM in 2024, I take the overall view we made strides forward in 2023.

The Board finalised the Strategic Plan for the next four years with a focus not only on consolidating what we do well but also looking at the ways in which we can introduce innovative programmes to reach wider members of our community who wish to participate in our sport.

Implementation of the plan has commenced and progress in setting down foundations to reach the desired outcomes have been put in place.

Our prudent and sound financial management has led us to be in the desired position of having six months' worth of expenditures in reserve. This gives us good financial stability which will allow us to retain capacity and capability should another event occur, which leads to a period where revenues of any nature dry up unexpectedly. We have also strived to run the Association and its programmes in a cost effective and efficient manner, highlighted in 2023 when we were able to return significant funds to our week-end participants due to efficiencies put in place through the season.

In 2023 there was progress made on several fronts. We heard our community and their stated number one priority of having more appointed referees and I am proud of the efforts made by Richard and key clubs in their efforts to bring this about, which indeed they did. Thank you to all those who contributed to ensure we had more appointed officials in 2023.

Two initiatives stood out. The first being our Ref

Supervisors appointed primarily to games on which new/novice referees were appointed to give them support, feedback and encouragement and we believe that this will help immensely in the retention of these referees for 2024. Thanks go to those who put their hand up to supervise and to the Coaches who adopted a more patient view of our developing referees in the light of such supervision. The "We are Team Ref" initiative also contributed to this and was well received widely across our community. Some empathy has now become apparent around the third team on court and their efforts to make the game as fair and enjoyable for the players as possible.

Other highlights are the emergence of Walking Basketball being enjoyed by older ex-players and their whanau as well as others in the community; the increase in Primary School teams/players showing the next generation is there to continue this amazing growth in the sport; our Development courses for referees and coaches alike; the Coach Connection Forum; and of course our weekend and premier high school competitions.

It would be remiss of me not to mention the Representative program also here, and the success in National Tournaments over the last three years with seven National titles across 2021; 2022 and 2023! Well done and thanks to our Head of Player Development as well as for the tireless efforts of the coaches within these programmes.

2024 will see the commencement of new programmes and initiatives to encourage greater participation





across the community creating opportunities for those wishing to play (an adaptive format) and thereby enriching our community further by giving them access to the sport. The appointment of our new Diversity and Inclusion Development Officer will ensure that these areas as well as female participation will have a key focus moving forward as set out in the Strategic Plan.

We, at CBA, all strive to be the best and despite some issues, we do have the best basketball system and competitions in the country, and the basketball community we have here in Canterbury is envied elsewhere. We always need to bear this in mind to put some perspective on matters.

The BBNZ Strength and Adapt plans are now established at BBNZ, and will run parallel to our own strategic plan and we will continue to work with Lori and Liz to progress projects in terms of Club Development, consistent and aligned Coach Education, Referee training, and upskilling Development Officers to train and accredit volunteers within their clubs.

Coachmate is now firmly established as a great tool for coaching sessions to be planned by volunteer coaches. I am informed that this will be enhanced further this year to include a team management tool and more drills and coaching ideas.

Further changes from BBNZ will be both welcomed and implemented in Canterbury. An aligned development plan for Referees is in place and I hope to work with BBNZ's new Referee Development Manager to bring about a pilot "Zonal Development Squad", the pathway to the National Development and Performance squads. I hope 2024 sees the publication from BBNZ of a similar pathway for coaches. In conjunction with the forthcoming Change Delivery System, we hope to see a robust aligned development plan from BBNZ, which CBA, as a Tier 1 Association, will endeavour to implement and develop our people cementing our place as the leading association for Player, Coach and Referee Development.

I am proud of the team here at CBA and their willingness to respond to the ever-changing demands of running a major sport in our community. The hours they dedicate to making Basketball an enjoyable competitive experience cannot be underestimated, so I would like to acknowledge all the CBA staff this year for their contribution and efforts throughout the year. The CBA office operate as a genuine team and share a common vision for the future of the sport in Canterbury and New Zealand.

The CBA Board, who give generously of their time and expertise, should be given the credit they deserve. All Board members contribute and ensure that CBA are properly governed with financial and other risk assessment, as well as ensuring we do not deviate too far from the goals set out in our Strategic Plan.

Finally, the level of commitment by everyone in our Clubs and Schools who have a passion for our Sport is truly humbling. They are determined to give the best experience for those that wish to play at whatever level. I acknowledge and thank all those individuals and organisations who support the work of the Association and Clubs. The coaches, administrators, referees, funding organisations, sponsors, and players are all partners on the journey, and integral to the success of the sport in the region.

It leaves me with a feeling of awe in terms of what people over the years have achieved by dedicating countless hours in a voluntary capacity. As stated, I am humbled by their contributions and feel privileged to be in my current position tasked with, and hopefully, improving the sport for all in our community.

Clive Beaumont, GENERAL MANAGER



CLUB BASKETBALL REPORT

James Lissaman



OVERVIEW

2023 was a relatively "normal" year, with no calendar changes needed, nor any restrictions on attendance required. We were really close to our limit in terms of how many teams we can service, especially when we number of suitable courts, and personnel to staff them. This unfortunately meant that we had to limit the number of male teams that we accepted entries from (each club and school had the ability to enter the same number of teams they did the previous season).

We continued with the "A" or "Sub-Grade" options for our junior boys' grades, and split timings to help maximise the coverage of games from a refereeing standpoint. Most Saturdays during the season saw us running competitions on 15 different courts, located in nine distinct venues across the city.

Despite the limit on male team entries, we still managed to increase the number of teams we catered for in the 2023 season (219 teams – which is more than double the 109 teams we serviced just seven years ago, in 2016). The growth of basketball coach numbers has continued on a similar trajectory to players and teams, over this time-period. 2023 saw the CBA placing a higher priority on confirming referee appointments, and support for newcomers into #TeamRef. This improvement makes me feel like we are in a good position here to continue growing our population of officials, and be able to shift our priority to the development of this new cohort of referees.

In the High School space, our "Lincoln University

Thomson and Whelan Trophy Competitions" had 38 teams competing over Terms Two and Three. Four boys' teams, and five girls' teams from Canterbury qualified for, and attended the Secondary School National Tournament. A new addition in this space was the NZCT Grocott Cup, which saw Y9/10 boys teams compete on Tuesday afternoons. 10 teams played in the inaugural season of the competition, and the grand final being decided in overtime. The Grocott Cup is named after the deceased life member John Grocott, who played a major part in the setting up of the Friday Night Secondary Schools Competition in Canterbury.

The Cowles Primary School competitions had an increase in time available, which allowed us to cater for an extra 157 young basketballers in the local competitions. One key change we enacted in 2023 was the reduction in players on-court in our Miniball competitions. We dropped the on-court number of players from each teams to four, which increased the amount of opportunities to touch the ball for each player, and also helped in regards to space for each player on the court.

It feels like I write a similar thing each year, but I really am indebted to all the administrators and coaches I deal with. So many of you truly go above and beyond, which is why basketball is played by so many people, in so many places across the motu. I am optimistic that the 2024 season will operate relatively smoothly, and I hope that 2025 will see us able to increase the feeling of kinship in our basketball community.

WINTER CLUB BASKETBALL FINALS REPORT

James Lissaman

MILES TOYOTA MEN'S PREMIER LEAGUE: UNIVERSITY OF CANTERBURY vs PIONEER (6 TEAMS)

Pioneer's Premier Men's team was back in the Grand Final after lifting the trophy in 2022, while UC had their first Finals trip since their successful 2019 season.

Both teams came out of the gates with an impressive offensive performance, scoring 57 points combined in the first quarter, before the defensive screws got tightened a bit at each end of the court. UC was able to take the lead from Pioneer in the second quarter, but only managed to push it as far as 10 points before being reeled back in.

The final 20 seconds of the game saw UC clinging to a threepoint lead, as three successive attempts to tie the game from Pioneer went begging, and finals MVP Noah Watson grabbed his 13th, and ultimately game-clinching, rebound, and then added two points to his 14 point tally from the Free Throw line just before the final buzzer. UC lifting the Robert-C-Curtis cup, after a thrilling game to finish off the 2023 Winter Club Season 92-87 over Pioneer.

First V: Josh Book – Checkers **Ben Constable – Pioneer (MVP)** Karesse Lavery – Pioneer Tanae Lavery – Lincoln University Sam Riley – UC

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses

Pioneer	10-5	Championship Finalist and Hoben Trophy Winner
Checkers	10-5	
University of Canterbury	9-6	Championship Winner
Lincoln University	7-8	
Gators	6-9	
Atami	3-12	





Miles

Toyota

MILES TOYOTA WOMEN'S PREMIER LEAGUE: CHECKERS vs LINCOLN UNIVERSITY (5 TEAMS)

The 2023 season had the women's premier champions crowned in July, as the six clubs involved wanted to be sure it wouldn't cause a conflict for any players involved in the Tauihi League as well.

Checkers was unbeaten through the regular season, with a perfect 10-0 record, while Lincoln University was 8-2. Rosalis Samas was out with an injury, but luckily for LU, Tall Fern Lauryn Hippolite had an awesome game, finishing with a triple-double (20, 10r, 10a) which helped the LU Rams to a 14-point lead late in the second quarter.

Momentum shifted in the second half, as Checkers began to exert some full-court pressure, and Nicole "the Flamethrower" Gleason started demanding the ball to good effect, as she scored 23. Checkers turned the deficit into a nine-point lead with five minutes to play, and was able to hold LU at bay the rest of the game, winning 74-70 as they secured back-to back championships.

Lauren Whittaker was awarded the Finals MVP award, after finishing with 13p, 21r, 4s. *First V:*

Samantha Duggan – Atami Nicole Gleason – Checkers (MVP) Mary Goulding – Atami Lauryn Hippolite – Lincoln University Riva Pitman – Halswell Lauren Whittaker – Checkers

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses

Checkers	11-4	Championship Winner
Lincoln University	11-4	Championship Finalist
Halswell	8-7	
North Canterbury	6-9	Patron's Trophy Finalist
Atami	6-9	
University of Canterbury	3-12	Patron's Trophy Winner

MEN'S DIVISION ONE: ATAMI CASA DE BANOS vs GATORS GREEN (14 TEAMS)

Men's Division One featured fourteen teams in 2023, with Gators Green being the class of the regular season portion of the competition, facing off against Atami Casa de Banos - a squad that regularly competed for the championship.

The first half was very tight, as neither team could pull ahead by a significant margin, and Atami headed into the half-time break with a 47-43 lead. An excellent start to the third quarter saw them extend this lead to 13 points.

At this point, Gators turned their defensive clamps on, going on a huge 18-2 run to build a lead in the final quarter. Tommy Fairbrother led the way for Gators with 21 points. Atami had another fightback in them, they grabbed the lead, and Fraser Costley (11p) icing the game with a three-point bucket in the final minute.

Cam Costley (18) recognised as the Finals MVP en route to his Atami team winning 79-73

First V:

Tommy Fairbrother – Gators Green (MVP)

Elijah Hapi – North Canterbury Inga Solofuti – Atami Casa de Banos Andre Tamagushiku – Wolverines Blue Logan Woodill – Swaggy P Fan Club

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses

2025 Regular Scason Wills-Losses		
Gators Green	12-1	Championship Finalist
Swaggy P Fan Club	12-1	Semi-Finalist
Atami Casa de Banos	11-2	Championship Winner
Warthog Wolverines	8-5	Semi-Finalist
Wolverines Blue	8-5	Top Eight
North Canterbury	8-5	Top Eight
Pioneer Blue	7-6	Top Eight
Pioneer Yellow	5-8	Top Eight
Checkers	5-8	
Wolverines Blouses	5-8	
Pioneer Red	5-8	
Wolverines Black	3-10	
Gators Red	1-12	
Pioneer White	1-12	







WOMEN'S DIVISION ONE: HALSWELL RED vs UNIVERSITY OF CANTERBURY

2023 was the eighth consecutive season that Halswell Red had qualified to play in the Grand Final for the Women's Division One Grade, with the matchup against UC being the third straight Grand Final where the two teams met. In addition to this, the Grand Final was their fourth meeting of the season, with Halswell Red holding a 2-1 edge here (despite UC having the better points differential from their matchups – all three of which were decided by single figures).

The Grand Final did not follow the script of the previous meetings though. It didn't take long for Halswell to blow the game wide open, building a lead of almost twenty points as UC struggled to score in the final three quarters. Victoria King (20p) being named as the Finals MVP for her efforts as Halswell Red rolled to a relatively comprehensive win.

Halswell successfully reversed 2022's result, winning the 2023 Grand Final 58-33.

First V: Charlotte King – Halswell Red Victoria King – Halswell Red Lily Nicol – UC **Rachel Pullan – Halswell Green (MVP)** Kali Zygmant UC

Rovals

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses			
Halswell Red	8-1	Championship Winner	
University of Canterbury	7-2	Championship Finalist	
Halswell Green	2-7		

1-8

FRENCH CUP: CHECKERS vs UC CHRISTCHURCH GIRLS' HIGH (6 TEAMS)

The French Cup was a new initiative in 2023, aimed to try and retain female basketballers in our competitions, when there was a high level of historic attrition. We were very pleased to have six teams involved in the first year of this competition.

UC-CGHS and Checkers had a tight battle in the first half, before Checkers had a mini-run to pull ahead by eight points after the third quarter ended. The gap between the two teams closed numerous times in the final quarter, but Checkers was able to answer each time, and walk out as the inaugural winners 68-55.

Niamh Chamberlain's 20 points saw hew named as Finals MVP. *First V:*

Ella Costley – Checkers **Violet Eaton – Gators (MVP)** Joanna MacAskill – UC-CGHS Grace Neilson – Halswell Rafferty Powell – Checkers

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses

Checkers	8-2	Championship Winner
UC Christchurch Girls'	8-2	Championship Finalist
Halswell	5-5	
Gators	5-5	
North Canterbury	4-6	
Lincoln University	0-10	





MEN'S U23 A: GATORS GREEN vs PIONEER BLUE (11 TEAMS)

MEN'S U23 PLATE: CHECKERS RED vs WOLVERINES

MEN'S U23 DEVELOPMENT: LU LONGHORNS vS PIONEER YELLOW (4 TEAMS)

Gators Green managed to eek their way into the playoffs when Checkers Black upset the LU Bulls at the end of the regular season, and they made the most of this chance, knocking off Atami at the buzzer to qualify against Pioneer Blue.

Scoreboard issues at Cowles Stadium meant this game had a delayed tipoff, but once it got going all of the spectators were treated to an extremely high-quality show, each team battling back and forth in the first half, with Pioneer amassing a 42-33 lead at halftime. Gators closed this gap to five with one quarter to go.

The final stanza had ten separate times where the scores were tied, or the lead changed hands, bu it was Zane Heslip's sole basket of the day giving Gators the lead for good, as he hit a three to put his team ahead 80-78.

A few chances went begging for Pioneer, and Gators Green completed an improbable run to the tropy, winning 85-78, with the Finals MVP award going to a deserving Zach Hannen (20p, 9r, 6a, 5s)

In the Plate Final Checkers Red won 124-80 against the Wolverines.

In the Development Final, the LU Longhorns faced off against Pioneer Yellow, with LU winning, 98-89. Connor O'Toole filled it up to the tune of 36 points, as he collected the Finals MVP award. *First V:*

Nash Biggs – UC Zach Hannen – Gators **Joel Jeffrey – Atami (MVP)** Quinn Lavery – Pioneer Loyal Patelesio – Atami

2023 Regular Season		A Grade Teams
Wins-Losses	_	
Pioneer Blue	11-3	Championship Finalist
Atami	11-3	Semi-Finalist
University of Canterbury A	11-3	Semi-Finalist
Lincoln University Bulls	9-5	Top Six
Checkers Red	8-5	Plate Winner
Gators Green	6-8	Championship Winner
Checkers Black	5-9	Top Six
Wolverines	5-8	
Gators Red	2-11	
North Canterbury	1-12	
University of Canterbury Dev.	1-3	Regraded from Development Grade

MEN'S U20 A: ATAMI KAHU vs CHECKERS RED (13 TEAMS)

MEN'S U20 MID: GATORS RED vs SELWYN HAWKS BLUE (9 TEAMS)

MEN'S U20 DEVELOPMENT: GATORS WHITE vs ST. ANDREW'S CHECKERS WHITE (7 TEAMS)

The crowd on hand for this final was treated to a spectacle, as the Atami Kahu and Checkers Red teams both had some high flyers on the court.

Checkers grabbed the ascendancy first, going up 26-16 early in the second quarter. For the twenty minutes the teams battled back and forth, with neither being able to move ahead of the other by more than four points.

A 10-0 run for the Kahu at the beginning of the fourth broke the stalemate, as their relatively small lead proved to apply just enough pressure to Checkers, as the Kahu wound up with a 77-68 win. Ihaka Cate's 28 point effort helping him to the Finals MVP honour for this game.

The Middle Grade had Gators Red win 73-61 over the Selwyn hawks Blue team. Brody Tew's (13p) performance saw him named Finals MVP.

In the Development Grade Gators White held on for a very tight 70-64 win vs St. Andrew's Checkers White. Mukudzei Manuhwa (10p) receiving the Finals MVP.

First V: Jayden Bamford – North Canterbury Black Ihaka Cate – Atami Kahu **Harrison Earl – Checkers Red (MVP)** Lochie Mclean – St. Bede's Checkers

Carter Rhodes – St. Andrew's Checkers

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses		A Grade Teams	
Checkers Red	11-1	Championship Finalist	
Atami Kahu	10-2	Championship Winner	
St. Bede's Checkers	8-4	Semi-Finalist	
North Canterbury Black	8-4	Top Six	
St. Thomas Pacers	8-4	Top Eight	
StAC Checkers Blue	8-4	Top Elght	
Gators Grey	7-5	Semi-Finalist	
Checkers Black	4-8	Top Six	
Pioneer Blue	4-8		
Atami Spartans	3-8		
Pioneer Cashmere	3-7		
UC Christ's	2-9		
Papanui Checkers	0-12		





BOYS' U17 A: RANGIORA vs SHIRLEY BOYS' SPARTANS BLUE (12 TEAMS)

BOYS' U17 SUB-GRADES (26 TEAMS)

Rangiora and Shirley Boys' High faced off in the Grand Final again, after meeting each other in the last game of the 2022 season as well.

This was once again one of the most entertaining games on Junior Finals Day with the #3 and #4 seeds both making it through the playoffs for the second consecutive year. The much larger Rangiora High team used their size advantage to good effect, building a double-digit lead at the half.

The fourth quarter saw the game come to life, as the Spartans used a 16-6 run to tie the game up inside the final minute. Rangiora was able to withstand the momentum shift, getting a few key stops, and scoring the final four points of the game to win 86-82.

Finals MVP went to Rangiora' Jake Holmes (14p) *First V:*

Jake Holmes – Rangiora High Milan Newton – Shirley Boys' High Tyrell Searle – Shirley Boys' High Ollie Shaw – Rangiora High **Antonio Verhoeven – St. Bede's (MVP)**

2023 Regular Season A Grade Teams Wins-Losses St. Bede's College 11-0 Semi-Finalist Red Shirley Boys' 10-1 Semi-Finalist Spartans Gold Championship Winner Rangiora 9-2 Shirley Boys' 8-3 Championship Finalist Spartans Blue St. Thomas Saints 5-6 Quarter-Finalist Christ's College Black 5-6 Play-in Hillmorton Gators Quarter-Finalist 5-6 Middleton Grange 5-6 Play-in Gators Kaiapoi High 3-8 Christchurch Boys' 3-8 High A Cashmere High 1-4 Regraded from Sub-grade Maroon

GIRLS' U16: CHECKERS VS HALSWELL (9 TEAMS)

An unbeaten season was on the line again for Checkers, with Halswell in the challenging spot of trying to end their run. The Halswell team had the better first half of the two teams, up 30-23 at halftime, but a 19-1 Checkers run over the third and fourth quarter saw them grab the inside track to the trophy.

Halswell made a run at the end of the game, but each opportunity was thwarted by Checkers, who held on to win 46-43, and completed a perfect season.

Jorja Abernethy (7p) was named as Finals MVP. *First V:*

Jorja Abernethy – Checkers Hayley Barrett – North Canterbury White Ellie Parish – North Canterbury Black Lucy Pearce – Checkers **Alyssa Proctor-McGregor – Gators (MVP)**

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses

Checkers	10-0	Championship Winner
Gators	9-1	Semi-Finalist
Halswell	7-3	Championship Finalist
North Canterbury White	5-5	Semi-Finalist
North Canterbury Black	5-5	
Pioneer Blue	3-7	
Pioneer Yellow	3-8	
St. Andrew's Checkers	2-9	
Selwyn Hawks	1-10	







BOYS' U15 A: HOROMAKA GATORS VS CASHMERE MAROON (12 TEAMS)

BOYS' U15 SUB-GRADES (36 TEAMS)

The top two seeds made it all the way through to the Grand Final in the Under 15 competition. A contrast in styles ensued, with Cashmere having the much bigger team on the court, while the Horomaka Gators had some outstanding shooters on their roster.

The game was filled with twists and turns, with 17 ties and lead changes occurring, and the teams always within single-digits of each other on the scoreboard.

The big shift came in the fourth quarter, Cashmere was battling foul trouble and injuries, which opened the door for Horomaka to make their move, scoring 8 straight points to break a 68-68 tie. Cashmere closed the gap to three points, but couldn't make that one needed bucket to tie the game up, Horomaka winning 87-79.

JJ Findlater (24p) received the Finals MVP award.

First V: Josh Breitmeyer – Cashmere High (MVP) Tawhiri Cate – Christ's College Black Toby Langrell – Horomaka Gators Kanye Perkins – St. Andrew's College Converse "Chucky" Tahere – Horomaka Gators

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses		A Grade Teams
Cashmere Maroon	11-0	Championship Finalist
Horomaka Gators	10-1	Championship Winner
St. Andrew's College Blue	9-2	Semi-Finalist
Shirley Boys' Spartans A	7-4	
St. Bede's Red	7-4	Semi-Finalist
Christ's College Black	6-5	
St. Thomas Thunder	5-6	
Christ's College White	3-8	
Burnside Black	3-8	
Riccarton Gators	2-6	Regraded from Sub-grade
Selwyn Hawks Blue	1-10	
Gators Red	0-2	Regraded from Sub-grade

BOYS' U13 A: LIONS PURPLE vs SELWYN HAWKS (9 TEAMS)

BOYS' U13 SUB-GRADES (16 TEAMS)

Selwyn was back in the Grand Final, but facing off against the class of the regular season – Lions Purple. As expected, the Lions team built a large twenty-point lead early in the second half, making it seem like the game result was now moot.

Someone forgot to tell the Selyn Hawks though, they kept on grinding, and battled all the way back to make it a seven-point game (89-82) with three minutes to go. At this point Lions re-inserted some key players into the game, and were able to control the final 200 seconds, winning 96-83. Grade MVP Lydian Thompson had an outstanding offensive game, netting 53 points for his Hawks team.

Kyraarn Kingi-Moreland (25p) netted the Finals MVP award, for his efforts, especially in the home-stretch of the game.

First V: Mataio Ifopo-Togia – Lions Kyraarn Kingi-Moreland – Lions Eli Lissaman – Kahu Kai Sloane – Pioneer Blue **Lydian Thompson – Selwyn Hawks (MVP)**

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses		A Grade Teams
Lions Purple	8-0	Championship Winner
Selwyn Hawks Blue	7-1	Championship Finalist
Pioneer Blue	5-3	Quarter-Finalist
Horomaka Gators	5-3	Quarter-Finalist
North Canterbury Tigers	4-4	Semi-Finalist
Wharenui Gators Grey	3-5	Semi-Finalist
Eastern Kahu	3-5	Quarter-Finalist
North Canterbury Lions	1-7	
St. Thomas Pacers	0-8	









GIRLS' U13: NORTH CANTERBURY WHITE vs WHARENUI GATORS

(8 TEAMS)

Wharenui Gators were the team to beat coming in to the Grand Final, but North Canterbury White definitely had something to say about it on Junior Finals Day.

North Canterbury was able to create a small lead in the first half, only to see Gators reduce this almost immediately to a solitary point at the start of the third quarter. NC responded with a 12-0 run, breaking the Gators' spirit, who were never able to get back within striking distance afterwards. NC White grabbing the championship 58-45.

Tessa Duncan scored 18 points to help her team to victory, and was awarded with the Finals MVP award. *First V:*

Alyssa Clarkson – Pioneer Blue Eve Cowan – North Canterbury White Shaye Edwards – Gators Holly Norton – Pioneer Yellow **Maiyah Profit – Gators (MVP)**

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses

Wharenui Gators	10-0	Championship Finalist
North Canterbury White	8-2	Championship Winner
Halswell	6-4	
Pioneer Yellow	5-5	Semi-Finalist
Pioneer Blue	5-5	Semi-Finalist
North Canterbury Black	3-7	
Selwyn Hawks	2-8	
Checkers	1-9	

MAJOR AWARDS WINNERS

CBA Staff



Coach of the Year: Dave Langrell

Dave coaches at almost all levels of community basketball. From the Primary School competitions at Pioneer Basketball Club, to the U15 National championship where his Canterbury Representative team won our first U15 Boys' national title since 2007.

He also runs the Hillmorton and Horomaka basketball programmes, where he can be seen on the sidelines for their Grocott Trophy team, which made the Grand Final in the first season of the competition, the Boys' U15 team, which won the grade, and the Hillmorton Tigers Thomson Trophy team.

A former standout player known for his passion, energy, and knowledge, he played many seasons internationally and in the New Zealand NBL in the 1990s and 2000s. His coaching contributions began immediately on returning to Christchurch in 2008 with no change in his passionate approach to the game. Since then, he has coached dozens of teams from the junior, to rep levels, including multiple championships at the U23 National Representative Tournament.

We are pleased to announce Dave Langrell as our 2023 "Coach of the Year". Thank you Dave for the tireless contributions you have made to the hundreds of players you coach in our community.



Administrator of the Year: Alice Clarkson

Alice has taken over the bulk of the Pioneer Basketball Club's team and player administration, and is extremely proactive in terms of identifying issues that could involve her club, well before they become a major concern.

She makes a point of observing all of the Pioneer teams play throughout the season, either personally, or having other Pioneer Club staff check in with the club teams (and we always see her at the Grand Final when a Pioneer team has qualified!)

The Pioneer Basketball Club is extremely lucky to have someone as dedicated and competent as Alice Clarkson in their club, our 2023 "Administrator of the Year".



Bruce Martin Memorial "Contribution to Refereeing" Award: Paula Wilkinson

This year's recipient of the Bruce Martin Award goes to someone who has given up their weekends across this, and many other, seasons to support players and referees from her club. Someone who tirelessly helps as a referee supervisor in our Under 13 and Under 15 grades, and who recognises the value of passing on her referee knowledge to others.

In addition to her efforts on the weekend, our award winner is regularly down at Cowles and Pioneer Stadiums on weekday afternoons, helping support and train our youngest, and newest, referees, developing them to be equipped with the necessary skills to officiate in our CBA competitions.

In 2023 she has also been integral in establishing the "Whistle Club" (a safe space for referees to learn in a community with other young referees) and has also refereed whenever necessary to ensure games are played fairly and safely.

It is an honour to present the "Bruce Martin Award" for 2023 to Paula Wilkinson.



Services to Basketball: Darrel Flynn-Thompson

Darrel has been a constant throughout this season, not to mention the previous five decades! Every Saturday he has been dressed in bright orange, and has filled the "Floor Controller" role at the Bishopdale YMCA.

Referees who get appointed to games at this venue are lucky, as Darrel goes above and beyond for them – most obviously by making sure there is food for them to snack on after their games.

We've had the "this is going to be the last season" conversation a few times now, but Darrel has always couched this with a "but, if you do need me anywhere, anytime, let me know and I'm only too happy to help!"

He was recognised by BBNZ for his Fifty Years of Service in May, and we here at the CBA would like to recognise him too, by awarding him our 2023 "Services to Basketball" Trophy.



Club of the Year: Pioneer Basketball Club

In considering this award CBA acknowledges the work of all clubs and the part they play in making our local club competitions the very best in the country.

Strong administration, referee and coach development are particular strengths of the club we honour as our "Club of the Year".

This Club strives to provide a positive playing environment for all its members and takes steps to reinforce sportsmanship and good on-court behaviour.

In addition, this season, it has worked tirelessly to assist CBA in providing more on court appointed referees and taken an active position in not only recognizing that a club must play its part in developing referees in order that worthwhile competitions can take place, but also appointed a dedicated Referee Administrator within the club. This has assisted the CBA Referee Manager immensely, by providing upwards of 30 referees for appointment practically every week of the season.

Furthermore, both player and coach development are at the forefront of its programmes, joining enthusiastically to embrace introduced programmes by both the CBA and BBNZ

We are happy to announce that the "Club of the Year" for 2023 is the Pioneer Basketball Club.



Nicole Gleason

MIDWEEK WOMEN

The Midweek Women's league had eight entries in 2023. The Pioneer Pumas went up against a well-seasoned Halswell Red team, who have back-to-back appearances in the finals.

In the basketball showdown between the Pioneer Pumas and Halswell Red, the first half was a nail-biter with seven lead changes. As the halftime buzzer sounded, both teams were deadlocked at 16 points apiece.

It wasn't until the seventh minute of the second half that the Pioneer Pumas began to assert dominance, steadily pulling away. The largest lead of the game occurred when the Pioneer Pumas surged ahead with a score of 34, while Halswell Red trailed at 19.

Halswell Red managed to narrow the gap to within nine points, but their efforts came too late as the Pioneer Pumas nailed one more basket to end the game. The final score settled at 39-26 in favour of the Pioneer Pumas.

Congratulations to Pioneer Pumas for becoming the 2023 Midweek Woman Champions!

First V: Georgie Sandilands (Halswell Green) Jo Casey (Pioneer Pumas) Lori Haisty (Pioneer Pacers) Sarah Mason (Minties) Valerie Eves (Halswell Red) MVP: Sarah Mason – Minties

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses

Pioneer Pacers	11-3 Semi Finalist
Minties	11-3 Semi Finalist
Halswell Red	11-3 Championship Finalist
Pioneer Pumas	7-7 Championship Winner
Halswell Green	6-8
СҮА	5-9
Checkers	4-10
Wowsers	1-13





MIDWEEK MEN

The Midweek Men's competition had seven entries this season. We had a new set of teams in the final this year – Atami Black vs. Knights.

The game was characterized by back-and-forth action throughout the entire first half, with the Knights managing to take a three-point lead by halftime.

The Knights maintained their lead for the majority of the second half. Although Atami Black managed to level the score at 31-31, the Knights remained undeterred. Following that, the Knights consistently held onto a lead of at least one basket for the remainder of the game. Ultimately, they emerged victorious with a final score of 49-45.

Congratulations to The Knights for taking home the gold for the Midweek Men's Competition!

First V: Caleb Ludlow (Atami) Chris Johnston (Atami Casa de Banos) Connor Page (Atami Casa de Banos) Jake Simpson (Atami Black) Tyrell Stockman (Knights) MVP: Jake Simpson - Atami Black

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses

Atami Black	12-0	Championship Finalist
Knights	9-3	Championship Winner
Atami Casa de Banos	7-5	Semi Finalist
Atami	5-7	Semi Finalist
Checkers White	4-8	
Royals	3-9	
University	2-10	





HIGH SCHOOL COMPETITIONS

Nicole Gleason

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY THOMSON TROPHY DIVISION I FINAL: ST. THOMAS vs CHRIST'S COLLEGE

We find ourselves with the same matchup as last year: St. Thomas vs. Christ's College as well with the same packed out crowed. However, this year's conclusion differs from the previous one.

The game began with both teams trading baskets, resulting in a back-and-forth scoring affair throughout the first quarter. By the start of the second quarter, St. Thomas held a narrow lead of just five points.

In the second quarter, St. Thomas seized control of the game and maintained their advantage throughout. They poured in a 15-point lead, but Christ's College managed to claw their way back, reducing the deficit to a single-digit margin by the end of the half.

Christ's College relied on the strong performances from their key players; Tama Isaac (21 pts, 6 rebs.), and captain Ihaka Cate

(22 pts, 7 rebs.), aiding in keeping them competitive throughout the game. Their closest opportunity to close the gap with St. Thomas came in the third quarter when they brought the deficit within six points.

Following the narrow margin of six points, St. Thomas coursed forward persistently, maintaining a double-digit lead for the remainder of the game. Notably, four of their players achieved a double-double performance, with team captain Hugo Gonzalez leading the charge with an impressive 25 points and 12 rebounds. However, the MVP of the match was Mana Martin, who contributed significantly with 28 points and 11 rebounds, ultimately securing victory for St. Thomas and avenging last year's defeat.

Congratulations to St. Thomas College on being the 2023 Lincoln University Thomson Trophy Division One Winner!





Thomson Division I Award Winners (Selected by each school. MVP unless otherwise noted) Ashlin Hala'ufia - Ashburton College
Jack Hollingworth – Burnside
Icaro Teixeira – Cashmere
Tama Isaac – Christ's College
Chris Cunningham (Co-MVP) – Christchurch Boys'
George Teear (Co-MVP) – Christchurch Boys'
Harry Roberts – Kaiapoi
Jacob Bennet – Lincoln
Declan McGill (Most Improved Player) – Lincoln
Jesse Lubbers – Middleton Grange
Kobe Murdoch – Rangiora
Jaspher Lacson (Co-MVP) – Riccarton
Maddox Miguel (Co-MVP) – Riccarton
Rian Drewett – Rolleston
Manaia-Ariki Wharepapa – Shirley Boys'
Nikou Fox (Services to basketball) – Shirley Boys'
Lochie McLean – St. Bede's
Mitchell Corkery (Co-MVP) – St. Andrew's College
Carter Rhodes (Co-MVP) – St. Andrew's College
Hugo Gonzalez (Co-MVP) – St. Thomas
Louie Gordon (Co-MVP) – St. Thomas
Max Fale (Defensive Player of the Year) – St. Thomas

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses			
St. Thomas College	10-0	Championship Winner	
St. Andrew's College	8-2	Semi Finalist	
Christ's College	7-3	Championship Finalist	
St. Bede's	7-3		
Christchurch Boys' High	7-3		
Rolleston College	7-3		
Burnside	7-3		
Rangiora	6-4		
Hillmorton	5-5		
Shirley Boys'	4-6	Semi Finalist	
Cashmere	3-7		
Middleton	3-7		
Каіароі	2-8		
Riccarton	1-9		
Ashburton	1-8		
Lincoln	1-8		



LINCOLN UNIVERSITY WHELAN TROPHY DIVISION I FINAL: ST. ANDREW'S COLLEGE vs RANGIORA HIGH SCHOOL

The Whelan Finals brings back the same showdown as last year, St. Andrew's facing off against Rangiora. StAC is back for their fourth consecutive appearance in the championship, aiming to achieve an unprecedented four-peat. That's certainly a remarkable streak of back-to-back victories.

StAC stormed ahead to a 15-point lead in the opening quarter, but Rangiora refused to falter, demonstrating resilience to keep the game within reach. Key players such as Ashlyn Rean (22 pts, 5 rbs, 5 steals), and Harper McDonald (11 pts, 5 rbs.) stepped up for Rangiora, helping to narrow the deficit to just an 8-point game despite STAC's strong start. At halftime, StAC held a commanding 14-point lead over Rangiora.

However, in the second half, StAC continued to dominate, pulling

further ahead. At one stage during the third quarter, StAC surged to a staggering 27-point lead, leaving only two minutes remaining in the quarter.

At the start of the fourth quarter, Rangiora managed to narrow the deficit to 13 points. However, their efforts fell short against StAC's formidable lineup; Kavanah Lene, who contributed 17 points and 4 steals. While the MVP of the game, Lauren Whittaker, with an impressive stat line of 23 points, 22 rebounds, and 8 steals, StAC secured their fourth consecutive championship.

Congratulations to St. Andrew's College for winning The Whelan Division One Championship game four years in a row!











Whelan Division I Award Winners (Selected by each school. MVP unless otherwise noted)

Ella Costley (Contribution to basketball) – Avonside Ava Costley (Contribution to basketball) – Avonside Indi Beeforth (Co-MVP) – Cashmere Sophie Hammond-Parrish (Co-MVP) – Cashmere Joanna MacAskill – Christchurch Girls' High Aliyah Newton – Kaipoi Ashlyn Rean – Rangiora Ivy Brown – St. Margaret's Kavanah Lene (Co-MVP) – St. Andrew's Lauren Whittaker (Co-MVP) – St. Andrew's Sophie McIntosh – Villa Maria

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses

St. Andrew's College	10-0	Championship Winner		
Rangiora	8-2	Championship Finalist		
Christchurch Girls' High	6-4			
St. Margaret's	5-5	Semi Finalist		
Каіароі	5-5	Semi Finalist		
Cashmere	3-7			
Villa Maria	2-8			
Avonside	1-9			



LINCOLN UNIVERSITY THOMSON TROPHY DIVISION II FINAL: HORNBY vs HAGLEY COLLEGE

A closely contested first quarter was how this game began, with Hagley holding a narrow five-point lead. However, it was in the second quarter saw Hagley truly surge ahead, dominating the game and finishing the half with a commanding 20-point lead.

Hornby showcased a performance with three players achieving a double-double, notably led by Gerald Sanchez (22 pts, 7 steals) who stood out among them. Despite their efforts, Hornby had brought the lead down to 18 points around the midway point of the third quarter.

In the fourth quarter, Hagley further solidified their dominance, extending their lead to a commanding 29 points. The collective

Thomson Division II Award Winners

(Selected by each school. MVP unless otherwise noted)

Max Pickard – Catholic Cathedral College Austin Earl – Darfield Dan Woodward (Co-MVP) – Haeata Tyrelle Kotara (Co-MVP) – Haeata Rykin Lauper-Edminstin – Hornby Leigh Edwards – Papanui Schalk Janse van Rensburg – Rangiora New Life Tyler Fairweather-Salkeld – Hagley effort of four Hagley players, all scoring in double digits, played a significant role in widening the gap. Leading the charge was none other than their captain and the game's MVP, Tyler Fairweather-Salkeld, who showcased an outstanding performance with 30 points, 6 rebounds, 8 assists, and 7 steals.

Despite facing a daunting 29-point deficit in the fourth quarter, Hornby refused to relent and continued to fight. Their determination paid off as they managed to narrow the final score to 71-89 in favour of Hagley.

Congratulations to Hagley College for winning The Thompson Division Two Championship game!

2022 Regular Season Wins-Losses			
Hagley	7-2	Championship Winner	
Hornby	7-2	Championship Finalist	
Papanui	7-2	Semi Finalist	
Cathedral College	4-4		
Rangiora New Life	3-6	Semi Finalist	
Haeata	2-6		
Darfield	0-8		







LINCOLN UNIVERSITY WHELAN TROPHY DIVISION II FINAL: HAGLEY COLLEGE vs ASHBURTON COLLEGE

Hagley back in the final this year hoping to secure the Championship Trophy.

Hagley and Ashburton entered the final with remarkably similar regular season records. The previous encounter saw Hagley securing a 16-point victory over Ashburton, setting the stage for Ashburton to seek redemption in this highly anticipated rematch.

The first quarter unfolded as a tightly contested affair, with both teams exchanging baskets, leaving Hagley holding a 3-point lead. The second quarter followed a similar pattern, with Hagley maintaining their lead throughout, aided by standout performances from Ashburton player Lily Williams (17 pts, 6 rebs), who kept her team competitive. As halftime approached, the game remained up for grabs, with Hagley holding a slender 4-point advantage.

At the beginning of the second half, Ashburton found a spark and dominated the first portion of the quarter. However, Hagley remained resilient, maintaining their pressure and pushing

(Selected by each school. MVP unless otherwise noted)

Whelan Division II Award Winners

Sara Buckley (Co-MVP) – Middleton

Sophie-Lee Hawken (Leading Scorer) – Hillmorton Alyssa Proctor-McGregor (Co-MVP) – Middleton

Lily Williams – Ashburton Paige Eder – Burnside

Francis Varga – Papanui Milly Gallagher – Rangi Ruru Nova Taukamo – Hagley forward. As the third quarter came to a close, the score stood at 41-33 in favour of Hagley, showcasing their determined effort throughout.

In the fourth quarter, Hagley truly showcased their dominance by limiting Ashburton to just 7 points. Led by key players such as captain Nova Taukamo (22 pts, 11 rbs) and Finals MVP Lily Tonascia, who contributed an impressive 27 points and 21 rebounds. By the conclusion of the game, Hagley had built an imposing 28-point lead, resulting in a final score of 68-40 in favour of Hagley.

With both the Thomson and Whelan Division 2 championships secured by Hagley this year, it marks a remarkable achievement for their teams. Hagley can proudly celebrate a double victory as they bring both championship titles back.

Congratulations to Hagley for bringing home the Whelan Division Two Championship Trophy!

Ashburton	8-1	Championship Finalist
Hagley	7-2	Championship Winner
Middleton	6-3	Semi Finalist
Burnside	3-5	
Papanui	2-7	Semi Finalist
Rangi Ruru	2-6	
Hillmorton	2-6	







NZCT GROCOTT TROPHY FINAL: HILLMORTON vs CHRIST'S COLLEGE

As the first Junior High School competition, there was uncertainty about what to expect. However, the teams delivered an exhilarating match, keeping spectators on the edge of their seats until the very end.

Heading into the final, Hillmorton came in with an undefeated record, while Christ's College had suffered two losses during the regular season, including one to Hillmorton. The game commenced, culminating in Hillmorton securing a 10-point lead over Christ's College by the end of the first quarter.

At the halftime break, both teams found themselves in a similar position, with Hillmorton still maintaining a 10-point lead. However, the momentum shifted in the third and fourth quarters. Christ's College mounted a comeback, narrowing the deficit to just four points by the end of the third quarter.

With the score so tightly contested, the final 10 minutes of the game were pivotal, as either team had the opportunity to become the first-ever winner of the NZCT Grocott Trophy. Given the significance of this inaugural competition, it was only fitting for the game to go into overtime. With the score tied at 75-75 in regulation, both teams had an additional five minutes to give their all and determine the ultimate victor.

In a tense moment for Hillmorton, they found themselves trailing by 6 points with only 41 seconds remaining. However, Toby Langrell stepped up to the challenge, sinking a crucial 3-pointer to narrow the deficit to just a single basket with 30 seconds left on the clock. Langrell showcased his talent with an impressive performance, contributing 24 points and 5 steals, while four of his teammates also delivered double-digit points to keep Hillmorton in contention

Thanks to standout performances from key players like Lui Tupuola, who recorded 18 points and 14 rebounds, and the MVP of the final, Tawhiri Cate, who contributed 15 points, 20 rebounds, and 8 assists, Christ's College tightened their defence in the crucial moments. Their collective effort prevented Hillmorton from tying the game again, ultimately leading Christ's College to secure the first-ever Junior High School Championship.

Congratulations to Christ's College for becoming the 2023 NZCT Grocott Trophy Champions!

2023 Regular Season Wins-Losses

0		
Hillmorton	9-0	Championship Finalist
Cashmere	8-1	Semi Finalist
Christ's College	7-2	Championship Winner
St. Bede's	6-3	Semi Finalist
Ashburton	4-5	
Каіароі	4-5	
Lincoln	3-6	
Rangiora	2-7	
St. Thomas	2-7	
Ellesmere	0-9	







DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Ben Constable

COACH DEVELOPMENT

In 2023, the Canterbury Basketball Association continued to build on the foundational work established in previous years, further developing and integrating new coaching tools like the Coaches Connection Forum, and rep programme master classes. These efforts, along with ongoing community coach development events and the progression of coaches within the Mainland and U13 Development Programmes, underscored a commitment to nurturing a diverse and skilled coaching community, aligned with best practices and the CBA style of play.

2023 saw over 90 separate coach development sessions offered, ranging from introductory courses, through to masterclasses, and interactive sessions. These totalled over 700 participations across the range of coach development opportunities.

Additionally, the introduction of the Signature League provided a developmental platform for coaches and coach developers, alongside referees and players, fostering skills in a high-pressure, supportive setting. The Apprentice Coach Programme further enriched the rep and development programme ecosystem, offering hands-on coaching experience, thereby creating a comprehensive pathway for growth within the basketball community.

REFEREE DEVELOPMENT

2023 marked the release of CBA's four-year Referee Development Plan. The plan aims to address the need for more trained referees due to the rapid growing demand at all levels from increased participation. The plan focuses on improving recruitment, retention, and development of community referees, with a four-year goal to enhance the referee pipeline, particularly targeting the junior club grades (level B and C). Key strategies include formalizing recruitment processes, refining retention approaches, and enhancing development pathways through training and mentorship programs. For more details, we highly encourage all members of the community to review the pathway and plan found: https://canterbury.basketball/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/2023-Referee-Development-Plan-Final.pdf.

The Referee Development programs in 2023 saw a series of targeted training and workshops, with a total of 509 participations, aimed at elevating the standard of officiating within the association. The year provided a comprehensive pathway for referee skill enhancement, from Level Zero courses to advanced Block/Charge courses by experts. The establishment of the Whistle Club and Referee Collective supported a community of learning and development among referees, contributing significantly to the overall quality of the game in Canterbury.

These sections showcase the Canterbury Basketball Association's comprehensive efforts in 2023 to foster a vibrant basketball community, through significant involvement in coach and referee development.

OTHER DEVELOPMENT

The Signature League is a new development league initiated by the Canterbury Basketball Association, emphasizing growth in a high-pressure, supportive environment. It targets players, coaches, and referees, offering structured off-season development through innovative gameplay and strategic sessions.











REPRESENTATIVE PROGRAM REPORT

Ben Constable

The 2023 Representative Programme saw record coaching and player participation numbers, and was underpinned by a deep commitment to the core values of the programme, particularly emphasizing the importance of being "Great Teammates."

2023 also saw the introduction of the Signature League, a new off-season initiative designed to develop coaches, referees, and players.

For a comprehensive overview of the 2023 Representative Programme and its achievements, please visit canterbury. basketball/rep2023



RESULTS AND AWARDS

	Result	Coaches	Awards
U23 Men	Strong showing, 5th place	Head Coach – Lori McDaniel	National Tournament Team:
		Assistant Coach – Mark Douglas	Quinn Lavery
U19 Men	Boys A – 3rd Place	Head Coach – Adam Morgan	National Tournament Team:
		Assistant Coach – Kelvin Fisher	Tom Harrison
		Apprentice Coach – Jayden Cameron	
		Manager – Raewyn Britt	
	Boys B – 3rd at Qualifiers	Head Coach – Joe Hope Powell	
		Manager – Sharon Wenmoth	
U19 Women	Undefeated National	Head Coach – Sam Watkins	National MVP: Lauren Whittaker
Champions	Assistant Coach – Cam Wilson	National Tournament Team: Maia Jones, Kerereatua Williams	
U17 Boys	Boys A - National Silver Medal	Head Coach – Fraser Costley	Tournament Team: Tamatoa
		Manager – Candice Costley	Isaac, Ihaka Cate
	Boys B – National qualification	Head Coach – David Wong	
		Assistant Coach – Rani Hammond	
U17 Girls A Team - National Silv	A Team - National Silver Medal	Head Coach – David Ermerins Assistant Coach – Sarah Corkery	Tournament Team: Molly Morrow, Ophelia Powell
	B Team – National Quarter	Head Coach – Seddon Smith	
	Final	Assistant Coach – Bhavna Prasad	
U15 Boys	A Team – National Champions	Head Coach – Dave Langrell	MVP: Hoani Ifopo-Togia
		Assistant Coach – Josh Potter	
		Apprentice Coach – Cam McClimont	Tournament Team: Tawhiri Cate,
		Manager – Tim Shannahan	Valentino Swainson
	B Team – Strong showing,	Head Coach – Scott Baker	
	15th, missing quarter finals	Assistant Coach – Tom Hughes	
	ων Γροπι	Manager – Richie Tikolevu	
U15 Girls A Tec	A Team, 6th place Nationally	Head Coach – Helen Williamson	National Tournament Team: Sara Buckley – Canterbury
		Assistant Coach – Maia Williamson	
		Manager – Alicia Davis	

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

	Result	Coaches	Awards
U13 Development	U13 Boys – 4 Teams	Boys Coaches –	
Programme	U13 Girls – 3 Teams	Head Coaches: Raymond Infantado,	
	3X3 Development Programme – 155 participants	Matt Vernick, Matt Robb, Simon-Pierre Mbonyinshuti	
		Assistant Coaches - Josh Shannahan, Malachi Drye, Sam Sloane, Jamie Wright	
		Apprentice Coaches - Jack Fensomp,	
		Slade St John	
		Girls Coaches –	
		Head Coaches: Sam Jenkins	
		Holly Parish,	
		Alice Clarkson	
		Assistant Coaches: Rose Clarkson,	
		Abby Liard, Bhavna Lata Prasad	
		Apprentice Coaches: Skylah Weatherford,	
		Saran Adams	
Mainland Regional	U18 Boys – 3 teams	Boys Coaches –	
Tournament	U15 Boys – 4 teams	Head Coaches: Cam McClimont, Glen	
	U15 Girls – 2 teams U18 Girls – 2 teams	Stevenson, Jack Fensome, Tom Hughes, Matt Riches, Nate Searle, Thomas Manley	
	0 18 Giris – 2 teanis	Assistant Coaches – Adam Buckby, Naison Muchena, Dane Willis, Ant Rickard, Craig Watts, Grant McKenzie, Hugo Clements	
		Apprentice Coaches - Richard Hancox, Will O'Brian, Hugh Dishington, Lethan Hugh	
		Girls Coaches –	
		Georgina Hiha, Annette Hynes, Bob Weatherford, Dilshan Muthunaidelage	

NATIONAL TEAM SELECTION HONOURS

Players Ihaka Cate – U16 Boys Mana Martin – U16 Boys Nicholas Book – U17 Boys Tamatoa Isaac – U17 Boys Manaia-Ariki Wharepapa – U17 Boys Kavanah Lene – Under 17 Girls Eibhlin Leeson – Reserve Under 17 Girls *Coaches* Josh Thompson – Head Coach U17 Girls Jack Williamson – Assistant Coach U17 Boys







REFEREE REPORT

Richard Kenny

Appointments: Firstly, a big thank you to all referees, schools and clubs for their help and encouragement for me during my first year in this role and in helping us fill appointments for our club competition. We saw an increase from 78% of appointments filled across 2022, to 82% in 2023, and over 200 people being paid to referee a game for us across the season. A particular thank you is due to Pioneer for their initiative in having their players from all their teams, referee at least one game across the course of the season. 2023 also saw the implementation of Refbook for appointing our Thomson/ Whelan competition, as well as for the last few weekends of the season and we are excited to carry forward this program into next year, as it will vastly improve the process for confirming appointments.

Development: We also were able to introduce Referee Supervisors around the courts for our Under 13 & Under 15 competitions, marking a huge improvement in protecting younger referees and a big thank you to the following people: **Barry Dent, Debbie Tamaiparea, Katrina Studholme, Max Wright, Paula Wilkinson, Richie Tikolevu, Sandra French, Shane Varga, Sophie**

Currie in filling out this role. The Referee Supervisor program is something we are keen to further implement going forward for our competitions from the 17 & Under category down. Over the course of the year, there have been 31 courses for recruiting and developing referees, with 13 of those being our Level 0 Introduction to Refereeing course, 3 Block/Charge Course sessions, 3 Whistle Club sessions (being run in conjunction with Pioneer) and a BBNZ Level One practical course.

Representative: On the representative front, once again Canterbury referees and trainers continue to represent strongly



Hamish Dale 3x3 Referee – courtesy of BBNZ

at the national and international level, as referenced later in this article. This year saw *Hamish Dale* gain his FIBA 3x3 license, *Marty Davison* referee at the FIBA U19 Women's World Cup, *Toni Smith-Hunwick* at the FIBA U17 Oceania Champs, 6 trainers attending BBNZ run tournaments and 8 National Tournament Finals Referees, including *Matt Bathurs*t with the NBL and Tauihi League finals.

Tribute and Leadership: Canterbury Basketball pays homage to former NBL referee and trainer Nick Warren who passed away in August this year. A referee and mentor for 30 years, with a great understanding for the game and a passion for training young referees, who will be missed by the referee community. We also want to acknowledge the work of the Referee Collective across the season in providing support concerning things like the Referee Development Pathway, feedback around the appointments process and investing in the referee community through training and or supervising. Many thanks to **Raewyn Willocks**, Hamish Dale, Jayden Rosanowski, Sophie Currie, Shane Varga, Paula Wilkinson, Sandra

French and Steph Eldred for serving in this way. Overall, 2023 has been a solid building block for the Recruitment, Development and hopefully the retention of the referee community in Canterbury and I look forward to seeing the continual growth of one of the best referee bases in New Zealand.

Nationals and Referee Awards:

Congratulations also to the following referees and trainers who attended national tournaments level in 2023: • U15 Nationals: *Brock Harlum, Finn Langrell, Hunter Clarkson, Jack Studholme, Lily Burrows* (was selected but couldn't attend due to injury). • U17 Nationals: *Austin*



Jayden Rosanowski receiving the senior most valuable referee



Nick Warren Refereeing

Smart (Finals Official), Ben McLauchlan, Blake Rosanowski (Finals Official), Brock Harlum, Harry Apes (Finals Official), Jayden Rosanowski, Sophie Currie, Tyler Radbourne. • U19 Nationals: Austin Smart, Blake Rosanowski, Ben McLauchlan, Hamish Dale, Jayden Rosanowski (Finals Official), Kirsty Howatson, Richard Kenny, Toni Smith-Hunwick (Finals Official), Tyler Radbourne. Technical Commissioner: John Bartlett. Trainers: Bill Eldred, Stephanie Eldred, and Gavin *Zimmerman.* • U23 Nationals & D-League: Ben McLauchlan, Blake Rosanowski, Jayden Rosanowski, Tyler Radbourne. Trainer: *Gavin Zimmerman.* • Secondary School Nationals: Austin Smart, Blake Rosanowski (Single A Finals Official), Hamish Dale (AA Finals Official), Hunter Clarkson, Jayden Rosanowski, Kirsty Howatson (Single A Finals Official), Tyler Radbourne (AA Bronze Medal Official). Trainer: **John Bartlett.** • Tertiary Nationals: Austin Smart (Finals Official), Ben McLauchlan (Finals Official), Blake Rosanowski, Brock Harlum, Diana Walsh, Hamish Dale (Finals Official), Jayden Rosanowski (Finals Official), Richard Kenny, Sophie Currie, Toni Smith-Hunwick (3x3), Tyler Radbourne (Finals Official). NBL & Tauihi League - Matt Bathurst (Finals Official for both), 3x3 Schick Cup Finals - Hamish Dale and Toni Smith-Hunwick. At our local Referee awards, the following were recognised for their dedication, achievement, and commitment to Canterbury Basketball. Most Improved Junior Referee: Hunter *Lethlean* • Junior Referee of the Year: Brock Harlum • Most Improved Senior Referee: Sophie Currie • Senior Referee of the Year: Jayden Rosanwoski • Bruce Martin Award Services to Refereeing: Paula Wilkinson.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



2023





FINANCIAL REPORT CONTENTS

	Pages
Association Directory	3
Statement of Financial Performance	4
Statement of Changes in Equity	5
Statement of Financial Position	6&7
Notes to the Financial Statements	8 - 12
Fixed Asset Register and Depreciation Schedule	13 & 14
Independent Auditor's Report	15

2



ASSOCIATION DIRECTORY

Entity:	Canterbury Basketball Association Incorporated				
Incorporation:	Incorporation Number: I.S. 1972/35 Incorporation Date: 11 August 1972				
Charities Commission:	Registration Number: CC39317 Registration Date: 20 April 2009				
Business Address:	220 Pages Road Wainoni Christchurch				
Nature of Business:	Not-for-Profit Amateur Sporting Organisation				
Board Members:	Barry Dent - Chairperson Greg Williamson Alan Wenmoth Fionna Chapman Jane Lattimore Will Lovell Letitia Stenberg		18 July 2023 27 March 2018 26 March 2019		
Management & Staff:	Clive Beaumont - General Manager Nicky Jagger – Finance Manager James Lissaman - Community Basketball Manager Nicole Gleason – Junior Events & Competitions Officer Ben Constable – Pathways & Community Development Manager Richard Kenny – Referee Development Officer				
Auditors:	HPH Audit Ltd Chartered Accountants Level 1/3 Picton Ave, Addington Christchurch				
Lawyers:	Parry Field Lawyers 1 Rimu Street, Riccarton Christchurch				
Bankers:	Westpac Banking Corporation Hornby Mall, 418 Main South Road, Hornby Christchurch				

3 5

HPH Audit



Statement of Financial Performance For the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

	Note	2023	2022
T		\$	\$
INCOME	1(h)		
Apparel & Merchandise - Net Profit		(4,090)	95
Contract Coaching		3,956	12,035
Community Grants & Sponsorship Funding		481,694	412,219
Donations Received		0	2,645
Interest Received		25,929	8,725
Investment Income Received		6,494	4,231
Senior & Junior Programmes		82,504	64,452
League Programmes		394,234	391,373
Tournament Hosting		31,464	26,370
Representative Programmes		174,678	121,948
Sundry Income – Wage Subsidy		600	3,600
TOTAL INCOME		1,197,463	1,047,693
EXPENDITURE			
Administration & Office Expenses		55,012	62,316
Coaching Costs		207	4,837
Employment Costs & Contract Services	3	551,057	519,350
Depreciation Charges	1(g) & 4	10,321	8,823
Senior & Junior Programmes		51,719	52,242
League Programmes		282,920	251,206
Hosting Tournaments		30,372	22,896
Representative Programmes		176,132	108,046
TOTAL EXPENDITURE			1,029,716
NET OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)		39,723	17,977
UNREALISED INVESTMENT INCOME/(LOSS)		22,543	(42,175)
NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)		62,266	(24,198)
		Contraction of the second second	

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Independent Auditors Report, accompanying Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements.

4 b



Statement of Changes in Equity For the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

	Note	Note 2023 \$	2022 \$
0			
Opening Equity		499,928	524,126
Surplus & Revaluations Net Surplus / (Deficit) for the Period		62,266	(24,198)
Total Recognised Revenue & Expenses	-	562,194	499,928
	-		
EQUITY AT END OF PERIOD	_	562,194	499,92

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Independent Auditors Report, accompanying Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements.

5 Å

HPH Audit



Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023

	Note	2023	2022
		\$	\$
CURRENT ASSETS			
Westpac - Cheque	1(d) & 5	52,012	13,070
Westpac – Wildcats Cheque	1(d) & 5	0	0
Westpac - Online Saver	1(d) & 5	45,465	88,185
Westpac - Bonus Saver (Sporting Chance Fund)	1(d) & 5	12,440	12,778
Westpac - Term Deposit Investments	1(d) & 5	523,978	454,242
Consilium – Investment	1 (j) & 5	288,078	261,544
Accrued Interest	0,	2,626	1,432
Prepayments		13,711	6,155
Inventory	1(b)	0	243
Accounts Receivable	1(e)	139	18,039
Total Current Assets		938,449	855,688
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Fixed Assets			
Basketball and Office Equipment (<i>Refer Schedule</i>)	1(g) & 4	9,956	14,109
Total Non-Current Assets	_	9,956	14,109
TOTAL ASSETS	-	948,405	869,797
CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Accounts Payable	1(f)	6,394	13,296
Accruals		78,398	53,012
GST Balance	1(a)	(7,896)	(2,439)
Revenue in Advance	1(h)	309,315	306,000
Total Current Liabilities	_	386,211	369,869
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Less Current Portion		0	0
Total Non-Current Liabilities	_	0	0
TOTAL LIABILITIES	_	386,211	369,868
NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES)	-	562,194	499,928

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Independent Auditors Report, accompanying Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements.

6 B



Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023

	Note	2023	2022
,		\$	\$
Equity Retained Earnings		562,194	499,928
TOTAL EQUITY		562,194	499,928

For and on behalf of the Association:

Barry Dent - Chairperson & Board Member

13 March 2024

lifBdore

Will Lovell - Board Member

13 March 2024

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Independent Auditors Report, accompanying Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements



Notes to the Financial Statements For the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

Canterbury Basketball Association Incorporated is an incorporated society under the Incorporated Societies Act 1908 and is also registered with the Charities Commission as a charitable entity under the Charities Act 2005.

Principal Activity

The Association is primarily engaged in the business of administering amateur basketball at all levels of the sport in the greater Christchurch region.

The nature of the Association's business has not changed during the year.

Measurement Base

These financial statements are Special Purpose financial statements.

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes in accounting policies this year. All policies have been applied on bases consistent with those adopted in previous years.

Specific Accounting Policies

In the preparation of these financial statements the following specific accounting policies that materially affect the measurement of financial performance and financial position have been applied:

(a) Goods & Services Tax

These financial statements have been prepared on a GST Exclusive basis, with the exception of accounts receivable and accounts payable which are shown inclusive of GST.

GST is accounted for on a "Payments" basis on a two-monthly reporting cycle.

(b) Inventory

Stock on hand is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

(c) Income Tax

No provision for Income Tax has been made as the Association is registered for charitable purposes. All income derived by the Association is exempt pursuant to Section CW41 of the Income Tax Act 2007.

(d) Bank Account Balances

The bank account balances include any uncleared deposits at balance date.

(e) Accounts Receivable

Receivables are stated at their estimated realisable value. All receivables are due within 12 months of balance date.

Bad Debts are written off in the year in which they are identified as irrecoverable.





Notes to the Financial Statements For the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

(f) Accounts Payable

All payables are expected to be settled within 12 months of balance bate.

(g) Fixed Assets and Depreciation

The Association has the following classes of Basketball and Office Equipment:

Class	Depreciation Rate	Method
Basketball Equipment	20-67%	DV
Office Equipment	16-67%	DV

All Basketball and Office Equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation of the assets has been calculated in accordance with the maximum rates permitted under the Income Tax Act 2007. The actual rates used are pronounced on the attached Schedule of Fixed Assets and Depreciation.

Derecognition

An item of Plant and Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

(h) Revenue

Entry and Registration Fees collected are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Donations Received are accounted for on a cash basis.

Grants Income is amortised over the term of the agreement, once all obligations pertaining to the advances have been fulfilled. The unexpired portion of any Grants Income at balance date is classified as Revenue in Advance and included in the Statement of Financial Position under Current Liabilities.

Interest Income is recognised when the deposit or investment has matured and the interest is accrued against the deposit or paid directly into the bank current account.

(i) Operating Leases

Leases under which all of the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are charged as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance in the periods under which they are incurred.

(j) Investment

Consilium Portfolio is recorded at market value.

9 کے HPH Audit



Notes to the Financial Statements For the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

2. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures cover the period for the twelve months ended 31 December 2022.

3. OPERATING EXPENSES

The following operating expense items are separately disclosed:	2023	2022
	\$	\$
Audit Fees	7,800	6,492
Interest Expense	0	0
Rental Lease Payments	17,217	17,217
Salaries, Wages & Contract Payments	519,997	489,755

4. FIXED ASSETS

Basketball & Office Equipment comprises:

Class	Cost \$	Accum Depn \$	Book Value \$	Book Value \$
Basketball Equipment Office Equipment	55,834 _25,851	49,885 <u>21,844</u>	5,949 <u>4,007</u>	7,058 7,051
Total Fixed Assets	81,685	71,729	9,956	14,109
Depreciation Expense co	nprises:		2023	2022
			\$	\$

2023

2022

Basketball Equipment Office Equipment	6,695 3,626	5,285 3,538
Total Depreciation	10.321	8,823
Total Depreciation	10,521	0,043



Notes to the Financial Statements For the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

5. SECURITIES AND GUARANTEES

The Association operates Current, Online Saver and Term Deposit accounts with the Westpac Bank.

There is no overdraft facility secured on the current account. As at balance date the interest rates for monthly credit balances maintained in the current account are 2.00 % p.a. for balances \$5,000 and over.

The Westpac Online Call Account attracts a current interest rate of 2.70 % p.a. on all balances.

The Westpac Online Bonus Saver Account attracts an initial rate of 1.00 % p.a. and a bonus rate of 3.50% provided no withdrawals are made during the month; representing a potential interest rate return of 4.50% p.a. calculated daily on the full balance.

The Westpac Term Deposit Account comprises:

Investment:	Amount:	Interest Rate:	Maturity Date:
Term Deposit # Twenty-eight	\$39,335	5.75% p.a.	31 Mar 2024
Term Deposit # Thirty	\$38,892	5.75% p.a.	28 Mar 2024
Term Deposit # Forty	\$53,909	6.10% p.a.	5 Dec 2024
Term Deposit # Forty-four	\$36,827	5.40% p.a.	19 Feb 2024
Term Deposit # Forty-six	\$41,968	5.50% p.a.	22 Mar 2024
Term Deposit # Forty-eight	\$41,151	5.70% p.a.	1 Feb 2024
Term Deposit # Forty-nine	\$41,151	5.70% p.a.	1 July 2024
Term Deposit # Fifty	\$50,744	5.90% p.a.	4 Aug 2024
Term Deposit # Fifty-one	\$40,000	6.00% p.a.	15 Sep 2024
Term Deposit # Fifty-two	\$50,000	6.00% p.a.	15 Sep 2024
Term Deposit # Fifty-three	\$40,000	6.10% p.a.	21 Aug 2024
Term Deposit # Fifty-four	\$50,000	6.15% p.a.	21 Dec 2024

The combined bank balances held at balance date totalled \$523,978 in funds (2022: \$454,242 in funds).

11 Ba

HPH Audit



Notes to the Financial Statements For the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

6. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital Commitments

The Association has no capital commitments as at 31 December 2023 (2022: \$0).

(b) Operating Lease Commitments

The Association has an operating lease commitment for the period 1 June 2022 until 1 June 2024 for \$17,217 per annum. This can be terminated with one months notice by either party. (2022: \$17,217).

(c) Finance Lease Commitments

The Association has a car lease commitment for the period 16 April 2021 until 16 April 2024 for \$7,399 per annum. (2022: \$7,399).

7. CONSILIUM INVESTMENT

The investment is in the name of FNZ Custodian Ltd and is recorded at market value at balance date.



Canterbury Basketball Association Incorporated Fixed Asset Register and Depreciation Schedule For the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

Class and Asset	Cost Price \$	Book Value 31/12/2022 \$	Additions/ (Disposals) \$	Gain / (Loss) on Disposal \$	Capital Profit \$	Mths	Depreciation is Rate \$	s U	Accum Dep'n 31/12/2023 \$	Book Value 31/12/2023
Basketball Equipment										
Glory League Hardware	13,364	437				12	40.0% DV	175	13,102	262
Glory League Camera (2)	7,000	417				12	40.0% DV	167	6,750	251
Glory League Cameras	4,652	1,061				12	40.0% DV	424	4,016	637
Glory League – NUC	578	335				12	40.0% DV	134	376	201
BBQ	565	252				12	25.0% DV	63	376	189
Boomerang "Pro" Model Rebounder	5,887	280				12	21.6% DV	60	5,668	219
Midnight Basketball Uniforms (50)	1,300	16				12	67.0% DV	1	1,295	5
Waitaha Uniforms U17 (26)	7,920	68				12	67.0% DV	45	7,898	22
Waitaha Uniforms U15 (26)	3000	548				12	67.0% DV	367	2,819	181
Uniforms U15 & U17	5,586		5,586			6	67.0% DV	2,807	2,807	2,779
Rep Uniforms U19	5982	3644				12	67.0% DV	2,442	4.779	1,203
Total Baskethall Emiliament	55.834	7.058	5,586					6,695	49,885	5,949

This Schedule is to be read in conjunction with the attached independent Auditors Report, accompanying Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements.

CanterburyBasketball

Canterbury Basketball Association Incorporated Fixed Asset Register and Depreciation Schedule For the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

Class and Asset	Cost Price \$	Book Value 31/12/2022 \$	Additions/ (Disposals) \$	Gain / (Loss) on Disposal \$	Capital Profit \$	Mths	Depreciation s Rate \$	\$	Accum Dep'n 31/12/2023 \$	Book Value 31/12/2023
Computer & Office Equipment										
Website	6,875	211				12	50.0% DV	105	6,770	105
Microsoft Surface Pro 4 Laptop (1)	2,066	46				12	50.0% DV	23	2,043	22
Couch (2)	972	452				12	16.0% DV	72	593	379
Acer Aspire Notebook (4)	3,864	91				12	50.0% DV	45	3,819	45
Apple Ipad 9.7 Tablet (3)	1,405	22				12	67.0% DV	11	1,394	11
Asus Flipbook Computer	696	109				6	50.0% DV	54	641	54
Apple Iphone XR	605	200				12	67.0% DV	134	539	99
MacBook Pro 15"	1,477	739				12	50.0% DV	369	1,108	369
HP Elitebook – convertible notebook	1,160	483				12	50.0% DV	242	918	242
Microsoft Surface Pro 7	1435	688				12	50.0% DV	344	1,091	344
Acer Aspire 3 Laptop	1,052	504				12	50.0% DV	252	800	252
HP 15.6 Inch Notebook	582		582			6	50.0% DV	218	218	364
Apple Ipad Tablet (6)	3662	3509				12	50.0% DV	1755	1,907	1,755
Total Computer & Office Equipment	25,851	7,052	582					3,626	21,841	4,008
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS	81,685	14,109	6,168					10,321	71,728	9,956

This Schedule is to be read in conjunction with the attached Independent Auditors Report, accompanying Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements.

14 J



P: (03) 379 8790 **E:** admin@hphaudit.co.nz

HPH Audit Ltd Level 1, 3 Picton Ave Addington, Christchurch 8011 PO Box 9094 Tower Junction, Christchurch 8149

www.hphanna.co.nz

Canterbury Basketball Association Inc.

Independent Auditor's Report For the 12 months ended 31 December 2023

To the Board of Canterbury Basketball Association Inc.

Report on the Annual Finance Report (Financial Statements)

Opinion

We have audited the Annual Finance Report of Canterbury Basketball Association Inc. on pages 3 to 14, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023 and the Statement of Financial Performance for the 12 months then ended 31 December 2023, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the Annual Finance Report present fairly, in all material respects, the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023 and the Statement of Financial Performance for the 12 months then ended 31 December 2023, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Report - Accrual (Not-for-Profit) issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements* section of our report. We are independent of the entity in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) *Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners* issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board and We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other that in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, Canterbury Basketball Association Inc.

Board's Responsibilities for the Annual Finance Report

The Board is responsible on behalf of Canterbury Basketball Association Inc. for the preparation and fair presentation of the Annual Report in accordance with Special Purpose Reporting Framework (SPFR) adopted is acceptable to the Association's circumstances, and for such internal control as the Board determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the Annual Finance Report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Annual Finance Report, the Board is responsible, on behalf of the Association for assessing Canterbury Basketball Association Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intend to liquidate or cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Finance Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Annual Finance Report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ) will always detect material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Annual Finance Report.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (NZ), We exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Finance Report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on effectiveness of the Board's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the Board and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Canterbury Basketball Association Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in Annual Finance Report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause Canterbury Basketball Association Inc. to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Finance Report, including the disclosures, and whether the Annual Finance Report represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that identify during our audit.

St. P. St. aubit Dr.

HPH Audit Ltd Christchurch 13th March 2024



We would like to acknowledge the support from our sponsors.













FUNDING PARTNERS

Acknowledgement

We would like to acknowledge the support from our funding partners.































Canterbury Basketball Association Cuthbert Green Sports Centre 220 Pages Road Wainoni Christchurch 8062

Postal Address

Canterbury Basketball Association PO Box 27112 Shirley Christchurch 8640 Website www.canterbury.basketba



